





“CROWSNEST

LADY OF THE MONTH

There are many spots of scenic loveli-
ness along Canada’s thousands of miles of
coastline rarely seen by any but the local
inhabitants, When quiet, isolated fjords
are mentioned, the rugged British Columbia
coast may come to mind, but the shores
of Newfoundland and Labrador have simi-
lar seldom-seen delights.

Visual evidence of this can be seen on
the opposite page. The ship is the frigate
Inch Arran and the photograph was taken
at Harbour Deep, Newfoundland, last
August by Ldg. Sea. A. C. Estensen.
Harbour Deep is on the east coast of the
“panhandle” of Newfoundland to the south
of Labrador.

The Inch Arran, one of the last of the
modernized frigates to join the fleet, was

commissioned at Sydney, Nova Scotia, on
November 25, 1959. (NFD-5454)

Negative numbers of RCN photographs
reproduced in The Crowsnest are included
with the caption for the benefit of persons
wishing to obtain prints of the photos.

This they may do by sending an order to
the Naval Secretary, Naval Headquarters,
Ottawa, attention Directorate of Naval
Photography, quoting the negative number
of the photograph, giving the size and finish
required, and enclosing a money order for
the full amount, payable to the Receiver
General of Canada.

Sizes, finish and the National Defence
standardized prices, follow:

4 x 5 (or smaller) glossy finish only .. $ ,10

6% x 8'2 glossy finish only ......,..... 40
8 x 10 glossy or matte finish ,......... .50
11 x 14 matte finish only .............. 1.00 -

SUBSCRIPTION RATE

The Crowsnest may be sub-
scribed for at the rate of $1 per
year; outside of North America,
$1.50. Orders, accompanied by
cheque or money order made to
the Receiver General of Canada,
should be sent to:

THE QUEEN’S PRINTER,

Department of Public Printing

and Stationery,
Ottawa, Ont.
Communications, other than those
relating to subscriptions, should
be addressed to:
EDITOR,
The Crowsnest,
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must be built accurately to scale, They -

may be canoes, sailing craft, boats,
power craft, aids to navigation, canals,
log rafts, the St. Lawrence Seaway or
many other things,

The models, which must be in before
July 31, of the year of entry, will be
displayed in the Marine Museum during
the CNE. Those of high standard will
be retained for display in the Museum,
others will be returned.

Prizes in the first category, for serving
RCSC, will be $50, $25 and $10. In the
second category for ex-RCSC there will
be one prize of $50.

Information on the competition may
be obtained from The Director, The
Marine Museum of Central Canada,
Stanley Barracks, Toronto 2B, Ontario.

Roll Lists Dead
Of Merchant Navy

A copy of the Roll of Honour of the
Merchant Navy and Fishing Fleet was
presented by the High Commissioner for
the United Kingdom in Canada, Sir
Saville Garner, to Hon. Howard Green,
Secretary of State for External Affairs,
at a private ceremony in Ottawa on
November 18,

The Honour Roll, printed in three
handsomely-bound volumes, was com-
piled by the U.K. Ministry of Transport.
It contains the names of United Kingdom

and Commonwealth seamen who were

killed during the Second World War
while serving in ships of United King-
dom registry or under U.K. charter. The
names of a considerable number of
Canadians are to be found on its pages.
Present plans are to display the
Honour Roll at a suitable place in
Ottawa where it may be viewed by
interested members of the public.

Bridgewater
Corps Honoured

Niobe Sea Cadet Corps of Bridge-
water has been presented with the
General Efficiency Award of the Navy
League of Canada.

The presentation was made in Novem-~
ber by Rear-Admiral R. E. S. Bidwell,
RCN, (Ret), to Chief Petty Officer
Arnold Powers on behalf of the corps.

This is the second year in succession
that Niobe Corps has ranked top among
corps of less than 100 cadets across
Canada.

Victor Gillis, Corps Commanding
Officer, was presented with an officer’s
sword by Lt.-Cdr. Channing Gillis,
area officer Sea Cadets.

A bosun’s call was presented to
Wayne Jefferson, judged the most out-
standing cadet among 2,500 who attended
training camp HMCS Acadia at Sydney
last summer.

Leading Cadets Wayne Barr and
Richard Wallace were promoted to

petty officers second class and Able "

Cadets Wayne Jefferson, Robert""Dorey,
John Taylor and Douglas Berringan
were promoted to leading cadets.

The awards were made at a banguet
honouring the corps by No. 24 Branch

‘Canadian Legion.

Hamilton Veterans
Choose Executive

The Hamilton branch of the Canadian
Naval Association elected and installed
its slate of officers for 1961 at the
annual meeting in mid-December,

Guiding the branch’s activities during
the year will be: Sidney Piner, presi-
dent; Willlam Shade, vice-president;
Clifford Black, secretary; Robert Fraser,
treasurer; William Wright, master-at-
arms; William Irvine, entertainment
chairman; Russell Woodward, publicity
chairman, and members of the executive
committee James Senior, Philip Fox
and Hugh McMurrich. The vice-
president, Mr. Shade, was also ap-
pointed delegate to the Canadian Naval
Association.

West Germans
Shanghaied

West German Bsailors, visiting London
on Trafalgar Day, found that the press
gang still exists—nowadays in skirts,
The unhappy encounter of the sailors
is recorded in a report on the visit of
the Third German FPB Sguadron to
Chatham, in the Admiralty News Sum-
mary. This is the sad story:

“The Senior Officer had ordered that
each First Lieutenant should take his
crew to London on an organized sight-
seeing tour, dismissing the men when
they had seen all that they were in-
structed to see; this scheme worked
well for all except one crew.

“This First Lieutenant took a little
longer than his fellows to cover the
ground and arrived at Trafalgar
Sqguare just as the Trafalgar Day cere-
mony was about to start. A zealous
lady (unknown, but possibly belong-
ing to the Navy League) spotted the
German sailors and before the First
Lieutenant could escape, organized
them into the ceremony, falling them
in on the front rank of the parade.
There the crew was stuck for the
hour and a half of the ceremony and
service, doing their best to follow the
movements of the others, off caps,
salute, stand at ease, et cetera,

“The First Lieutenant later said
that he had never been so nervous and
out of his depth but that he and the
sailors had been very impressed with
the ceremony. The crew was televised
and reported as being part of the
parade. It is understood that they
acquitted themselves very well.”

The annual report showed that the
branch had made substantial progress
in .its wvarious fields of activity during
the year. The outgoing executlive was,
in particular, commended for the suc-
cessful autumn ball held in recognition
of the RCN’s 50th anniversary.

Chief and POs

Commissioned

Twelve former chief petty officers
and pelty officers were promoted to the
rank of acling commissioned officers
during the latter part of 1960. All have
completed officer’s divisional courses
and have ‘taken up appointments with
the fleet.

They are A/Cd. Off. John Charles
Jessop, Robert McGahan, Donald P.
Raven, Harold J. Achtzener, James
Walter Williamson, John Campbell Wil-
son, William G. Gray, James H. Gower,
Kenneth B. Leadley, Herbert E. War-
man, Henry D. B. Cutler and Eric
Albert Stevens.

School Officials
Taken on Cruise

Seventy high school supervisors, prin-
cipals, guidance counsellors and selected
students from schools in Corner Brook,
Newfoundland, were taken on a cruise
in HMCS Outremont in early December,
It was part of the program during which
school authorities across Canada were
made acquainted with the Navy.

During the cruise in the Outremont
the visitors were given demonstrations
in seamanship, gunnery and anti-sub-
marine warfare, followed by a tour of
the ship.

Dockyard Visit
By Westerners

A, G. Francis, C. L, Madill, C. F. Little
and W. H. Gittens, senior dockyard
supervisors of HMC Dockyard, Esqui-
malt, were recent visitors to the Halifax
dockyard with a view to exchanging
information on repair techniques and
problems.

A presentation to Mr. Francis for the
Dockyard Officers’ Club of Esquimalt
was made by J. J. Breen, Assistant
Superintendent (Administration), Hali-
fax, on behalf of the 14 civilian officers
of the Halifax dockyard who visited the
Esquimalt dockyard during the week of
September 11, 1960.

U.S. Submarines
Call at Halifax

Two United States Navy submarines,
USS Cavalla and USS Hardhead, were
in Halifax in early December for a two-
day courtesy visit. Twenty officers and
170 men were in the boats,
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Secx Thousand “[ons of Chicken

In 1959 Her Majesty officially opened the St.
Lawrence Sedway. While its construction was gen-
erally acknowledged as a tremendous achievement, it
is probable that few present and future commanding
officers appreciated that this project removed ome of
the greatest ulcer factories of recent years. The fol-
lowing is a description of ship handling manceuvres
which wvanished when the Old St. Lawrence Canal
System was supplemented by the Seaway.

While the width of the water surface of one of
the old St. Lawrence Canals was some 130 feet, its
unseen sloping sides provided the promised 14-foot
draught over only 90 feet of usable water.

The canalers were all 44 feet wide, for profitable
use of the 45-foot locks. An Algerine’s beam was
35. This left ten feet of unoccupied water when
passing. It was left to mental telepathy between the
captains to agree whether or not this ten feet would
be apportioned as five feet between the ships and
two or three feet outboard of each. Voices got high-
pitched if the distance between ships got less than
three feet, or over eight.

For many years sailors had been taught that if
they saw both a red and green light dead ahead to
do something quickly. The ship that did that in the

St. Lawrence Canals immediately lost her fair share
of the ditch.

The approved technique was a marine version
of the jalopy drivers’ game of “Chicken”. Both ships
held the middle of the canal, bows-on and dead slow,
until about half-a-length apart, or until one captain
lost his nerve. Each then adjusted course to starboard
until the bows were overlapped by about one third of
the length. Each ship then reversed rudder and, nearly
stopped, the two ships rotated round each other like
a couple of ponderous old ladies linking arms in d
square dance. The pilots, ever conscious of single-
screw ships, were most concerned about the hazards
of the two sterns being sucked together and tended
to delay recovery accordingly. At this point, a war-
ship commanding officer’s eyes were fixred on the
starboard quarter which, with its propeller, was
alarmingly close to the bank. Should you put it ahead
to get rudder action? Put it astern to swing the ship
back into the line of the channel? Or acknowledge
the fact that disaster was inevitable and stop it to
reduce the damage?

It required at least ten such occasions to be con-

vinced that there was only one good thing about this

“chicken”~style evolution. It worked.

Y

- .

BEFORE THE SEAWAY

OR MANY a long year —in fact,

for more than a hundred years—
no warship dared set bottom in the
Great Lakes. The Rush-Bagot Agree-
ment, designed to keep the inland seas
free of shooting, took care of that.

Then, during the Second World War,
the agreement was relaxed and the
Lakes were aswarm with warships,
practically all downward bound to the
sea. They were mew construction cor-
vettes, Algerines, Bangor minesweepers,
Western Isles trawlers, oilers, and so
on, whose ships’ companies could tie up
and let go with their eyes shut for weeks
after their vessels had threaded their
way through the innumerable locks of
the old canal system.

Nowadays commanding officers speak
light-heartedly of the voyage to.the Big
Swamp to the west of Montreal. Those
who took ships up there for the sum-
mer Reserve training season before the
opening of the new Seaway two years
ago are haunted men.

The letter that follows is a liberal
paraphrasing of one written in the years
before the Seaway. All the incidents are
factual, the description and marratives
somewhat elastic.

Page fourteen

NDG: 4000-999

Shore Patrol Office,

Yellowknife, N.W.T.
Sir:

It is with regret that 1 submit the fol-
lowing report of a series of incidents
which took place in the old St. Law-
rence Canals on that happy day of the
12th May, in the year 2 B.S. (Before
Seaway).

Incident No. 1 (Montreal Harbour)

Having been told the harbour was
clear of shipping and been given the
Harbourmaster’s permission to proceed

" to the Lachine Canal. I backed out of

Market Basin into the St. Mary’s
Current and there found one of the
Empress ships heading angrily toward
us at downbound speed. There being
no white line, it seemed discreet to
yield the right-of-way.

After stemming the clock tower (and
hence the current) for some 15 min-
utes, I turned to port out into St.
Mary’s Current, which caught the bow
and induced a rapid sheer to port. This
would have been of no consequence
with normal rudder and manceuvring
power. However, when the order was
passed to reverse the rudder it was

found that back pressure developed
before the wheel reached the amidships
position and it could only be put to
starboard at about 1° per second. De-
spite the use of full-astern on the star-
board engine, the sheer could not be
stopped.

The ship headed between the buoys
on the south side, while moving broad-
side downstream at about six knots.
Full-astern on both engines prevented
the seemingly imminent grounding, but
I elected to ride the current down be-
low the bridge and, there, turn for a
more sedate attack. The pilot’s re-as-
surance that we were not the first ship
to pass under the Jacques Cartier bridge
broadside was of little consolation at
that time.

The current subsided enough, off
Saguenay Terminal, to enable us to turn
at rest, without difficulty or unaccept-
able suspense.

The wheel, while still stiff, did not
appear to be unmanageable. I allowed
myself to believe that either the rudder
had been jammed by drift-wood now
shaken' free, or that the apparent stiff-
ness was due to the pressures of the
sheer and the six-knot current.






Incident No. 5

This incident was almost identical
with No. 4 except that it was oriented
on the opposite bank, as a result of an
irrevocable over-correction when at-
tempting to prevent a repetition of
No. 4. As in that incident, the stem
settled gently into the bank and both
propellers appeared to have remained
in deep water.

This incident provided us with a
souvenir photograph which was only
appreciated at a later date. The high-
way, at that point, is only a matter of
feet from the canal. A large red
Chrysler Imperial, complete with a
baggage trailer made of red Chrysler
fenders, had stopped to photograph our
unusual vessel. In the middle of these
activities they suddenly appreciated that
their subject had turned directly toward
them. OQur photographer turned the
tables and provided an amazing photo-
graph of our forecastle, with the tourists
in the immediate background scrambling
up the bank in an effort to remove their
car and company from the path of this
angry monster., No water shows in the
photograph.

Incident No. 6

Had there been - any haven with
vertical sides, I should, after incident
No. 5, have elected to stop pressing my
luck in this frying-pan-fire circum-
stance. However, the next lock was by
then in sight. The intervening distance
was negotiated by use of alternate en-
gines at 100 revolutions, an unorthodox
but successful tactic which kept the
ship in mid-channel by a sinuating
route, without the use of the rudder.
The lock promised only temporary re-
spite as several miles of similar ditch-
work lay beyond it and no waiting dock
was provided.

Fortunately, a few hundred yards off
the lock, I saw three small piers which

" extended about six feet from the water-

line shore of the canal. These piers
had, in times gone by, served as braces
for a waiting float, since removed.
While not an attractive berth in itself,
it was like an oasis in a desert. Still
using only the main engines, 1 deliber-
ately grounded the stem beyond the
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Abandon Ship or
Have Breakfast?

Have you ever heard a siren-whistle
signal of three long and two short
blasts?, If not, it does not mean that
your seamanship manual is out of date
or that you missed the latest notice
to Mariners. This sound signal was
originally a form of greeting between
ships of one of the largest Great Lakes
fleets. I{ has since become a greeting
or salute between all ships and stations
in that area, though it possesses no
official or written sanction.

The stranger to the Great Lakes is
unlikely to forget his first experience
with this signal. The first thought is
to wonder whether the signal means
that you are about to run aground, you
should abandon ship, you are in the
wrong side of one-way channels or
that you should send the hands to
breakfast.

After a few weeks one becomes
accustomed to receiving this signal
from ore-carriers, waterfront factories
and steam shovels ashore, even from
the policeman at a canal bridge in the
middle of a town,

The letter “D”—a long and two
shorts—is also used as a greeting.
Reference to the inland rules of the
road show that this is to be inter-
preted as *Go on”. Since it conse-
quently causes no action on the part
of the ship to which it has been ad-
dressed, there is a trend for it also
to be used as a friendly greeting by
passing ships, yachts, and even by the
canal bridge operators.

Ignorance of such common local
practice is not blissful.

farthest pier and leaned against it at
an angle which kept the stern in deep
water.

The ship remained in this unorthodox
berth and posture for some two hours,
while the steering engine and tele-
motors were thoroughly overhauled. By
this time the cross-wind had strength-
ened and, lacking faith in the steering,
I elected to stay put for the night. In
order to clear the channel, the stern
was. swung in by deck tackle until
lead-line soundings approached propel-
ler draught. A thorough overhaul of
the steering gear must have been suc-
cessful as no further such incidents
threatened during the ensuing day-and-
a-half of similar canal operations.

General Remarks

The foregoing incidents all took place
in an interval of ten hours or three
and a half packages of cigarettes.

While incidents Two through Six all
entailed one or other propeller being
in danger, I felt, at the end of this
happy day, that the most likely damage
might have been incurred by the star-
board propeller (in the last stages of
incident Three). I had no suspicion that
the port propeller had been damaged.
In the course of the 14-knot transit of
the Farran’s Point Rapids and the pro-
longed speeds of 12 and 13 knots up
the St. Lawrence above Prescott there
was no evidence of undue vibration and
the ship was able to sustain a speed
through the water appropriate to the
revolution table.

I was therefore surprised and dis-
appointed to learn that a diver, sum-
moned for another purpose, reported
the propeller to be badly damaged.

The port propeller was indeed such
a distorted mass of metal that I am un-
able to explain how we were able to
make 12 knots and more, and without
vibration. The starboard propeller
blades’ trailing edges were serrated but
dock officials expressed doubt that these
bites were new. Both propellers were
accordingly removed and replaced by
the spares which are carried in the
squadron with pessimistic foresight.
Conclusion

I acknowledge full responsibility for
the damage suffered by the port propel-
ler and I am not prepared to dispute
the age of the lesser scars of the star-
board propeller. In retrospect, it may
be considered that the decision to press
on after the first three incidents was
unwise. Later, the prismatic shape of
the canal floor seemed to offer no al-
ternative.

I have the honour fo be,
Sir,
Your obedient servant,
LIEUTENANT COMMANDER,
, RCN
COMMANDING OFFICER
Squadron Commander,
99th Canadian Escort Squadron,
Calgary, Alta. .
—W.V.AL.



AFLOAT AND ASHORE

PACIFIC COMMAND

HMCS Fraser

Cdr. Donald John Sheppard took ¢om-
mand of the Fraser on January 4. The
Fraser is a unit of the Second Canadian
Escort Squadron at Esquimalt.

Cdr. Sheppard was born in Toronto
in January, 1924 and joined the Royal
Naval Volunteer Reserve in December,
1941. He graduated from flying training
with the U.S. Navy in May 1943, and
later was awarded the DSC for shooting
down two Japanese fighter planes over
Sumatra. He destroyed in all four
enemy aircraft, and one probable.

He transferred to the RCNVR in
March 1944 and to the regular force in
June 1946. In December 1955 he was
appointed executive officer of the
Iroquois and in July 1958 was appointed
to the staff of the Director of Naval
Training at Naval Headquarters.

ATLANTIC COMMAND
HMCS Micmac

The Micmac returned from New York
on November 1 to a self-maintenance
period in Halifax, and then sailed for
Exercise “Guardian” with Commodore
James Plomer, Senior Canadian Naval
Officer Afloat (Atlantic), embarked.
Later Commodore Plomer transferred
to the Crescent at night by jackstay
with both ships darkened. The exercise
concluded on November 15, and Micmac
returned to Halifax.

From November 16 to 18, the ship
engaged in anti-submarine exercises off
Halifax. En route to Halifax on Novem~
ber 18, AB Rudolph J. Jelinek, a sonar-
man, was lost overboard. This accident
brought to the Micmac sorrow which
will not soon be erased. Assisted by the
Crescent, Lauzon, HM Submarine
Aurochs and aircraft and helicopters
from Shearwater and Bonaventure, the
Micmac searched the area for 24 hours
to no avail.

On November 21, en route to “Pre-
Wintex” exercises the Micmac held
memorial services in the position where
Able Seaman Jelinek was lost. Engines
were stopped and two wreaths dropped.

In the days that followed gunnery,
anti-submarine and other exercises were
carried out on November 27 fuel and

stores were taken on at Point Edward

Naval Base, Sydney, the ship sailing
the following day for further anti-sub-
marine exercises. On the 30th, the
Micmac entered Sydney for a two-week
self-maintenance period.

In sports, the ship’s hockey team de-
feated the Crescent 7-4, and New Water-
ford 5-1, and the soccer {eam blanketed
the Crescent, 2-0. The officers and chief
and petty officers’ hockey team defeated
leading seamen and below, 13-4.

In November, the Micmac steamed
3,938 miles, for a total of 31,910 miles
since December 31, 1959.

During 1960, the ship was away from
her home port for 197 days, of which 154
days were spent at sea.

Leadership School

JOTL Course Sierra left the Leader-
ship School, Cornwallis, on November
26, for Shearwater to complete the air
familiarization phase of their course.
They préviously'completed a five-week
period in the communication division of
the Fleet School and a week in leader-
ship.

On December 9, two courses, No. 56
Officers’ Divisional Course and No. 111
Petty Officers’ Leadership Course, com-
pleted their six week training. Keen
rivalry existed between these two while
in the school and regular battles occur-
red in the gym, pools, and on the rink.

Of the 17 Officers in No. 56 Course,
14 were branch officers and three were
direct entry officers, two of them
medical.

In No. 111 Course, five of the petty
officers were ex-air apprentices who
recently completed 39 months’ training.

The children’s Christmas party was
again promoted by the Leadership
School, with preparations under the
supervision of Lt. Bruce Massie.

NAVAL DIVISIONS
HMCS Queen

United States Navy Reserves from
Miles City and Great Falls, Montana,
were guests of Queen, the Regina naval
division, in early November, on a three-
day schedule of visiting, shopping and
entertainment.

A total of 40 officers and men, accom-
panied by their wives, made the trip
from Montana by bus and chartered air-
craft,

The first evening the ship’s company
was on hand at Queen to welcome the
guests to the wardroom and messes, The
following morning they wiinessed new .
entry training and then inspected the
buildings and facilities. Later they
toured the city and met the mayor who
presented an official plaque of Regina to
commemorate the visit. In the after-
hoon many took advantage of an oppor-
tunity to shop. The evening was topped
off with a highly successful ship’s com-
pany dance and buffet supper.

The next morning, Sunday, the visi-
tors attended a church parade, returning
to Queen for coffee and a group picture,

This was the second visit to Queen
by the USN Reserve, Officers and men
from Queen will pay their second visit
in the fall to complete the double cycle.

HMCS Prevost

October 28, 1960, for some members
of HMCS Prevost, London naval divi-
sion, was a memorable occasion. On
that date His Excellency the Governor
General, accompanied by Madame
Vanier, arrived in London to attend the
Convocation of the University of
Western Ontario. :

Cdr. G. A. MacLachlan, RCN(R),
Honorary Naval Aide-de-Camp met His
Excellency at the station, and the RCN
staff from Prevost waited on the cars
carrying Their Excellencies and other
members of the Vice-Regal party.

His Excellency expressed pleasure in
the Royal Canadian Navy’s participation
in his visit and later presented his
limousine driver, CPO Arthur R. Cham-
berlain, with an engraved -cigarette
lighter, which will remain a proud
token of the occasion.

During the visit His Excellency and
Madame Vanier attended a luncheon in
their honour at the London Hunt and
Country Club and inspected a Royal
Canadian Regiment Guard of Honour.

HMCS Scotian

Lt.-Cdr. Bruce S. Oland has been
appointed executive officer of the Hali-
fax naval division. He succeeds Lt.-Cdr.
Robert G. Cannell.
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THE COURT OF ADMIRALTY

A student of naval tradition, Lt.-Cdr. A. D. Taylor plots the course of

maritime justice over six centuries

HE COURT of Admiralty of Eng-

land in 1960 marked its 600th
anniversary. The year also saw the
eighth centenary of the promulgation of
the most important medizval source of
maritime law, the Laws of Oleron.

The long history of the Court dates
from Edward III's grant of letters patent
on July 18, 1360, to Sir John de Beau-
champ, appointing him to be *the King’s
Admiral of all the Fleets of Ships of the
South, the North and the West, with full
powers of hearing plaints of those things
which pertain to the office of Admiral
as of right and according to maritime
law . . .’

The first recorded case in the Court
of Admiralty was heard in 1361. The
Court is said to be the oldest interna-
tional court of law still in existence, It
is truly international in that it has
always functioned in time of war as a
prize court, administering the Law of
Nations. Many foreign ships, by con-
sent, now come under its jurisdiction
and so help preserve its historic inter-
national character.

Modern rules of navigation and mari-
time commerce have their origin in the
Lex Rhodia (Rhodian Sea Law) which
governed trading in the Mediterranean
some 1200 years ago. The shipping laws
of the Republic of Rhodes, which had
originated with the Phoenician mer-
chants of Tyre and Sidon in about 1500
BC, were adopted by Rome in the Digest
of Justinian, and by other Mediterranean
states. From the original Consulato del
Mare (Consulate of the Sea), which
dates from an early century but was not
recorded until 1494 AD in the Kingdom
of Aragon (now Barcelona), the Rhodian
TL.aw probably passed to the Assizes of
Jerusalem. From the latter source the
laws were recorded in a revised form
in the 12th century by William de Forz,
the commander of a part of the Spanish
fleet taking part in the second Crusade,
who took them back to the Island of
QOleron in Aquitaine, near La Rochelle
in France.

Following Henry II's accession. to the
throne in 1154 Oleron became an English
possession. The Roll or Rule of Oleron,
issued in 1160 by Eleanor of Aquitaine,
duchess of western France and wife of

Page twenty

Henry Plantagenet, is the most im-
portant mediseval source of maritime
law and custom. Based on the decisions
of the Merchant Court of the island in
the Bay of Biscay, the Law of Oleron
was accepted throughout northwest
Furope as the commercial law for the
eastern Atlantic coastal trade.

In states other than England, that is
on the shores of the North Sea and in
the Mediterranean, the laws of the sea
and the Law Merchant were adminis-
tered by a variety of courts, which
administered justice according to some
strange rules and procedures. In the
year 1194, when Richard I stopped at
the island of Oleron, there were only
local seaport courts in England, These
courts of local officials and merchants
sat, as did the maritime courts in other
states, on the foreshore from high tide
to the next high tide.

A case of seizure of a ship at sea was
brought before the Court of Common
Pleas in 1296. The defendant argued
that the court was without jurisdiction
since “there is assigned on behalf of the
King upon the sea an Admiral to hear
and determine matters upon the sea,
and we suppose not you are minded to
curtail their jurisdiction”. It is recorded
that the judge of the common law court
replied: “We have genéral power
throughout the whole of England, but
of the power of the Admirals of whom
you speak we know nothing. Nor are
we minded to yield any of our power
if it be not done so by command of the
King of which you show nothing.”

HE MOST FAMOUS of the local

maritime courts was that of the
Cinque . Ports. Originally there were
three towns in the group: Dover,
Romney and Sandwich. William the
Conqueror added Hastings and Hythe,
and is said to have been responsible for
the name Cinque Ports, which has re-
mained, although before the reign of
King John (1199-1216) Winchelsea and
Rye were also added., The privilege of
maritime jurisdiction enjoyed by these
boroughs was granted by the sovereign
in exchange for the supply of ships and
seamen. for the Royal Navy.

Richard I (the Lion-Hearted) applied
the Roll of Oleron, which he obtained
in 1194 on his return from the third
Crusade, with little change to his English
fleet. Through him the Lex Rhodia was
adopted as a maritime code, not only in
Britain, as the Ordonnances—the earliest
known Articles of War—but in the
Baltic as the Laws of Wisby (in Gotland,
Sweden), and in the many north-
FEuropean towns which comprised the
Hanseatic League, as the Lubeck or
Hanseatic Code. These bodies of law,
recording the rights of foreign ship-
owners and traders, formed the original
basis for international law of the sea.

The 35 Laws of Oleron (or “The
Judgments of the Sea”) made a con-
siderable and a lasting impression on
the law of the sea in England, for they
were incorporated into the Black Book
of the Admiralty, in which was recorded
in the 14th century all the law relating
to seafaring under the British flag.
Through the 14th to the mid-18th cen-
turies the Black Book was in use as

‘the authority for British maritime law.

The oldest copy of this famous book,
dating from about 1430, but not earlier
than 1422, is still held by the Admiralty
Court, although it is retained by the
Public Records Office in London, It con-
tains “, . . the ancient statutes of the
Admiralty, to be observed both upon
the ports and havens, the high seas and
beyond the seas . ..” :

It is unlikely that any English court
had complete jurisdiction in maritime
matters before 1360. Probably an ad-
miralty court was established in order
to deal more effectively with piracy,
which has been defined as “robbery com-
mitted within the jurisdiction of the
Admiralty”. Efforts from 1300 to 1350
were generally unsuccessful; there was
no single authority ' which exercised
jurisdiction in this field of the criminal
law.

The significance of Sir John de Beau-~
champ’s commission in 1360 as Lord
High Admiral was that it gave to one
man command of all the fleets and mari-
time jurisdiction over and above the
usual disciplinary powers of an admiral.
The commission, which marks the begin-
ning of the English Court of Admiralty,



authorized him to appoint a vice-
admiral or deputy to administer the laws
of admiralty while he should retain the
admiral’s jurisdiction over the fleets in
matters of command and discipline, The
admiral’s deputy, or judge-in-admiralty,
was usually a man trained in the civil
law, i.e. the law which had been de-
veloped by the Romans and had come
down from the Digest of Justinian,

HE FIRST Court of Admiralty was
T presided over by a deputy of the
Lord High Admiral; the law applied was
based largely on the Laws of Oleron,
But though the Court of Admiralty had
a general maritime jurisdiction, certain
local courts such as the Commissions of
Oyer and Terminer (criminal courts),
retained their special jurisdiction in the
environs of their own ports. There was
a concurrent jurisdiction between the
high and low water marks since the
Admiralty Court claimed jurisdiction on
the high seas from the high water mark.
This arrangement was far from satis-
factory, and there were bitter disputes
over jurisdiction for at least the first
300 years of the Court’s long history.

Despite restrictive statutes in 1389,
1391 and 1400, conflict between the
jurisdiction of the Admiralty Court and
that of the common law courts persisted
until 1875 when the two jurisdictions
became concurrent. But until the act
of 1873 which established the Court of
Admiralty as a component of a division
in the High Court of Justice, the Court
was restricted as to subject matter and
place of a legal action by the common
law courts. The latter had a practice of
dealing with cases in which the cause
of action had occurred at sea by stating
as a legal fiction, that the action had
taken place on land, i.e. “within the
hody of an English county”; in at least
one case a position in the Bay of Biscay
was said to be in one of the wards of
the City of London.

The Royal Exchange was a favourite
fictitious location for the completion of
maritime contracts. While by such
fictions the common law courts were
able to usurp jurisdiction over contracts
of affreightment, charter-parties, etc.,
completed abroad, these courts were
never able to deal with collisions, mari-
time torts (civil wrongs), or securities
in ships. An act of Henry VIII gave the
Admiralty Court jurisdiction in matters
of freight (i.e. shipping charges) and
cargo.

To protect against usurpation of juris-
diction by:-the common law courts, the
Admiralty Court had no recourse other
than to petition the sovereign. As the
result of such an appeal, Queen Eliza-
beth I wrote in 1570 to the Mayor and
Sheriffs of London:

“To heare and determine all manner
of causes and suites arising of contiracts
and other things happening as well upon
as beyond the seas by attachmenis or
otherwise, the knowledge whereof doth
properly and specially belong and ap-
pertaine unto our Court of Admiraltie,
fayning the same contrary to the truth
to have been done within some parishe
or woarde of that our citie of London;
like as wee think it very strange that
by such unirue surmises the prerogative
and jurisdiction of our said Court of
Admiraltie should be usurped by you
and our said Admirall and his Lieu-
tenant defrauded of that which is due
unto them; soe wee thought it meete
straightly to charge and command you
to forbeare 1o intermeddle with any
matter, cause or suite proceeding of any
contract or other thing happening upon
or beyond the seas in any other
place within the jurisdiction of the
Admiraltie”.

For its part, to avoid conflict with
the jurisdiction of the local Assizes, the
common law criminal courts, the Ad-
miralty Court hanged pirates from
gibbets erected in tidal waters, and left
their bodies to be washed over by three
successive tides. Theft of a ship’s equip-
ment or stores over the value of nine-
pence was punishable by death in the
14th century. As with pirates, thieves
were hanged on a gibbet below the low
water mark.

“Pirates and robbers by sea are con-
demned in the court of the admeraltie,
and hanged on the shore at lowe water
marke, where they are left till three
tides haue ouerwashed them”.

RIMINAL jurisdiction on the high
C seas, which was vested in the Court
of Admiralty until 1536, was then held
by the judges of the common law courts
unlil 1835, at which date it was formally
given to the Central Criminal Court in
London. That court, popularly known
as the Old Bailey, “has jurisdiction to
hear and determine any offences com-
mitted or alleged to have been com-
mitted on the high seas and other places
within the jurisdiction of the Admiralty
of England”. In fact the Court of Ad-
miralty had sat in the Old Bailey for
criminal cases for more than a century
before 1834. Captain William Kidd, the
English privateer who turned pirate, was
tried at “The Admiralty Sessions at the
Old Baily”, and on conviction was
hanged at Execution Dock in London on
May 23, 1701.

England for centuries, and even as
late as the early 18th century, claimed
to possess “Sovereignty of the Sea” over
the English Channel and the North Sea.
While the Court of Admiralty inter-

preted the English maritime law, the
Royal Navy saw to its enforcement.

After the Restoration in 1670 the
common law courts were successful in
forcing a lean period on the Admiralty
Court, the latter being saved until the
early 1800s only by having the sole
jurisdiction in prize. Between 1803 and
1811 there were over a thousand prize
cases a year, and in some years the
number exceeded two thousand. Thus
while the jurisdiction of the Admiralty
Court had again become restricted, in
fact more so than in its earliest days, it
had become of great importance,

The court was described in 1803 by
Nathaniel Johnston, the founder of a
British shipping firm, as “one of the
most villainous courts in Europe, always
on the look-out for pickings.”

Parliament abolished the local mari-
time courts in 1835, and extended the
jurisdiction of the Admiralty Court
through the Admiralty Court Act of
1840. It is in this statute that we find
the first reference to the High Court of
Admiralty. A second Admiralty Court
Act in 1861 further enlarged the court’s
jurisdiction, and again it grew in
importance.

In 1875, when the Supreme Court of
Judicature Act of 1873 came into effect,
the High Court of Admiralty became a
part of the High Court of Justice. It
formed, with the two other great
branches of the civil law, the Probate,
Divorce and Admiralty Division. Roman
law, as derived from the Digest of Jus-
tinian through Oleron and the Black
Book, remained of considerable au-
thority in the Royal Courts of Justice,
but could not be pleaded in the common
law or chancery courts where case law
and equity respectively took the place
of the principles of Roman civil law. It
is for this reason alone that Admiralty
now finds itself in association with the
two other fields of Roman law, Probate
and Divorce.

The President of the Division sits
alone in prize cases; appeals are to the
Judicial Committee of the Privy Council.
The President or puisne judges of the
Division preside without juries in other
admiralty cases, with appeals to the
Court of Appeal and the House of Lords.

The Elder Brethren of Trinity House
(whom Samuel Pepys, Secretary to the
Admiralty from 1660 to 1669, referred
to as “The Old Jokers”) sit in the High
Court of Admiralty in maritime cases as
nautical assessors. Their function is to
give expert evidence, usually in open
court, on issues of fact concerning sea-
manship and navigation; they cannot be
cross-examined. A judge-in-admiralty
is not obliged to request the services of
an assessor nor to accept his advice. The
Elder Brethren may also advise in
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at Shotley, where there are about a
thousand lads in training, competition
is forever keen.

Before that, came the First World War
in August 1914. More than 400 boys
trained at Watts Naval Training School
were to be found on the high seas in
His Majesty’s service in submarines,
battleships, destroyers and cruisers of
the British Fleet. One ship alone was
reported to have had ten Watts Naval
School boys in her company. It is doubt-
ful indeed if any single school within
the British Commonwealth of Nations
could have eclipsed that record.

Six boys from WNTS had a share in
that memorable raid upon Zeebrugge,
while two others from the same school
went to their deaths with Kitchener of
Khartoum when HMS Hampshire sank
in the English Channel. Annually on
Armistice Day the young tars of the
Naval School remembeér before God 44
Watts Naval School boys who gave their
lives in that heroic conflict. ’

If for that alone, the Watts Naval
Training School had indeed justified her
existence as a Naval Training Centre.
Had it not measured up. to the required

standards of the Royal Navy one can -

rest assured the Barnardo Homes would
" not have risked a second attempt in this
regard. The appearance of the Russell-
Cotes Nautical School some 15 years

CHIEFS, POs

ACK TO SCHOOL again went 23
B chief and petty officers with the
opening of the third Branch Officer
Candidates’ Education Course at Naden
on October 17. Ahead of them lay a
program of intensive studies that would
keep them occupied until the end of
next May.

The students, all with years of naval
service behind them and ranging in rank
from petty officer first class to chief
petty officer first class, could draw on
the experience of the two groups that
preceded them.

The second Branch Officer Candidates’
Educational Course, which ended early
last summer, qualified 17 students edu-
cationally for promotion to commis-
sioned officer—all that began the course
in ‘October 1959 except for one who
withdrew for medical reasons.

Their service of from 12 to 20 years
on the lower deck had made them well-
versed in their own trades. What they
sought during the course was to broaden
their intellectual horizons, to improve
their powers of written and oral com-
munication and to fit themselves for the
responsibilities of commissioned rank.
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later in Parkstone, Dorset, was in itself
a tribute to the success of WNTS.

The Russell-Cotes Nautical- School
opened at Parkstone in 1919 with 13
ten-year-old boys. Its chief function as
a nautical school was to train boys for
the British Mercantile Marine. While
“Watts” was strictly a naval training
school maintaining an exacting dis-
cipline, it had its counterpart in the
Russell-Cotes School, for in the latter
the discipline was not relaxed, the school

.curriculum not less rigid, nor were its

'schoolmasters or nautical instructors less
exacting in their demands upon those
“merchant seamen” in embryo, nor were
its standards in anyway inferior to those
of the Norfolk School.

Trained for the British Merchant
Navy, RCNS boys have manned the mer-
chant ships of Britain’s leading shipping
companies, some of them as licensed
and others :as unlicensed personnel.
Those who shccessfully pass the pre-
scribed examihations required of wire-
less operators’,are found a berth as radio

“operators in the Royal Navy, or as

qualified “sparks” in the Mercantile
Marine. For 30: years the Russell-Cotes
Nautical School'had sent a steady stream
of thoroughly trained lads into the Mer-
chant Navy, and thus achieved the pur-
pose of its establishment in 1919,

Then came the merger of 1949.

In that year, after it had contributed
an enviable list of commanders, lieu-
tenant-commanders, a generous sprink-
ling of officers in lesser ranks and
numerous Jack Tars to the Royal Navy
for 47 years, the Watts Naval Training
School closed its doors, stripped the
school of its naval trappings and moved
the “ship’s complement” to the Russell-
Cotes Nautical School at Parkstone. The
name of the Watts Naval Training
School remains well known throughout
the Royal Navy and its boys, along with
their contemporaries of the RCNS, will
be long remembered for their success
on the high seas, an honour to their
country, their respectlve schools and the
Barnardo Homes.

So we find that “Parkstone Sea Train-
ing School” is the new name of the
former RCNS adopted at the time of
the merger in 1949. Because the work
had to go on, the school has carried on
valiantly with its double-barrelled job.
The former Captain Superintendent of
Watts Naval School is in charge at Park-
stone. There is no doubt that under his
guidance and with true naval distinc-
tion he will maintain the traditions set
by the two schools which have preceded
and comprise what is now officially
known as the Parkstone Sea Training
School.

HEAD BACK TO SCHOOL

The course’ ranged through mathe-
matics, sciencei'and political geography
to Canadian history and English litera-
ture. Lectures were designed to permit
maximum student participation and
guest speakers brought them new in-
sights into a wide variety of topics.
Field trips were included in the cur-
riculum, as were visits to places of
historic and educational interest in
Victoria and district.

The students gained practical experi-
ence in navigation and seamanship
during a four-day cruise in the training
yacht HMCS Oriole, during which they
visited the annual Cherry Blossom Fes~
tival in Bellingham, Washington.

The cruise through the Gulf Islands
provided them with opportunity to try
their skill in pilotage and navigation.
For most of them, it was their first time
under sail, despite their one or two
decades of service at sea in all types of
RCN ships.

The voyage was a welcome break in
the long round of classroom studies and
the students felt it paid dividends during
the examinations held shortly after.

Formerly the educatlonal courses
offered to lower deck personnel, selected
with a view. to promotion to commis-
sioned rank, were made up of a variety
of subjects based on the requirements
of each student’s particular trade. Now
the course has a general academic
approach, each student taking the same
subjects. From this has emerged a more
closely-knit group, exhibiting singleness
of purpose and mutual help. _

It’s quiet around the house, with Dad
settled down for a long evening of home-
work, so provision has been made for
a number of well-spaced social events
during the year for students and their
families.

At the beginning of - each course a
coffee party is held to enable the wives
to get acquainted with each other. A
class get-together is held after each set
of examinations and, at graduation time,
a dinner dance is the event of the year.

The students of the second course felt
the program was an exacting one but
found gratification in their achievement
and confidence in approaching their new
duties.—C.C.






tendent of Pilots in Sydney, Cape
Breton Island, writes from personal ex-
perience. The book opens with a
description of the tern schooner St. Clair
Theriault which he owned and operated
for three years before she was lost in
an Atlantic storm. This chapter is a
classic short story of the sea.

Captain Parker traces the history of
the shipbuilding industry in Atlantic
Canada from the great days when Canada
ranked fourth among the ship-owning
nations of the world to the 1920s when
construction of three-masted fore-and-
aft rigged cargo schooners ceased. He

continues with details of all the three-.

and four-masted Canadian-built schoon-~
ers and rounds out the book with an
alphabetical list of these lovely ships.

This is a work to delight both the
historian and the practical sailor. The
facts have been compiled and portrayed
in a scholarly manner and every figure
has been checked for authenticity. At
the same time, there are sail plans,
waterlines and profiles for the ship
builder and detailed descriptions of rig,

-

equipment and design for the ship
owner. The photographs are many and
excellent.

It is seldom that a reviewer helps to
publish the book he is writing about but
this is one of those occasions. In 1957,
I met Captain Parker in Sydney and
learned of his valuable manuscript and
his unique records of the vanished
schooner. It had not proved possible to
get the work published as an ordinary
commercial venture but it clearly de-
served publication. I enlisted the co-
operation of the Maritime Museum of
Canada, obtained a reasonable quotation

for the design, printing and binding of .

the book and played some part in getting
the financial support of the Canada
Council for publication. Thus I am well
acquainted with its merits and with its
author.

One- of the aims of the Maritime
Museum of Canada is the interpretation
of our maritime heritage. It would be
difficult to find a better interpretation of
this area of our history or a more grace-
ful presentation of a graceful subject. It

AN OLD HAND RETURNS
TO THE LOWER DECK

ITH THE PUBLICATION of his
third book, ‘“Return to Sea,”
William H. Pugsley has produced half
of the non-fictional works dealing with
the Royal Canadian Navy. This fact is
not so much a compliment to Pugsley
as a reflection on the shrinking-violet
attitude of retired senior officers who
could produce some interesting and pos-
sibly piquant memoirs if they would
only disabuse themselves of the un-
reasoning conviction that their service
must remain forever -silent. Until the
millennium arrives, however, the read-
ing public will have to be satisfied with
books which deal solely with ships at
sea and the men who sail in them.
Such a book is “Return to Sea,” and
it could best be described as a post-war
version of “Saints, Devils and Ordinary
Seamen”. The author revisits the Navy,
finds himself “deposited with a bump”
on the lower deck again, and compares
the personnel of the ’50s with those of
the ’40s. Predictably enough, he finds
them much the same. The characters,
the pranks, the ‘beefs’, the good and bad
qualities described in the earlier book
are here, altered only by the compara-
tive complexity of their technological
setting. '
The author takes a pilgrimage to
Stadacona and Cornwallis, describes a
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modern anti-submarine exercise in a
DDE, lingers fondly in a Tribal, and
finishes with an interesting chapter on
life in the Bonaventure.

The conclusion deals with recruiting
methods, promotion, recreation' and
adaptation to civilian life, describing
improvements made since 1945 and sug-
gesting further ones. Indeed, the main
interest of the book lies in its contrasts
and reminiscences, and for this reason
it will appeal largely to lower deck
veterans of the Second World War. |

This is a difficult book to assess, which
is surprising, since superficially its
raison d’etre is simplicity itself. The
author obviously loves the Navy and
wishes to write about it lovingly. This
he succeeds in doing, although he loads
the book far too heavily with largely
repetitive anecdotes. One suspects that
if Professor Pugsley were to don a
McGill jacket and pussyfoot through a
college residence, he would observe
practical jokes that compare favourably
in ingenuity with those he describes so
interminably in “Return to Sea.” How-
ever, he makes his point about lower
deck bonhomie.—M.S.

RETURN TO SEA, by W. H. Pugsley, Lt.-
Cdr. RCN(R) (Ret.); published by Collins,
Don Mills, Ont, 1960, illustrated with 15
photographs, $4.50.

is expected that the first run of the work
will be soon exhausted. The Museum
sells this delightful book at the bargain
price of $5 a copy. It’s required
reading.—C.H.L. :

SAILS OF THE MARITIMES, by John P.
Parker. Maritime Museum of Canada, Hali-
fax, N.S.; $5 from the Museum,

HYDROFOIL
ADVOCATE

HILE THE RCAF Staff College

Journal for 1960 ranges widely
over Canadian and international affairs,
interest of naval readers will un-
doubtedly centre on Lt.-Cdr. W. E.
Clayards’ discussion of the potentialities
of hydrofoil craft in ASW.

Lt.-Cdr. Clayards, who took over the
command of the frigate Swansea on
September 1, was naval liaison officer
at the Defence Research Board’s Naval
Research Establishment in Dartmouth.
The NRE for several years has been
investigating hydrofoil craft, which have
the virtue of being able to maintain high
speeds in rough seas.

“Hydrofoil Craft—A New Hope for
NATO's ASW Problems”, as Lt.-Cdr.
Clayards’ article is entitled, won honour-
able mention in the Journal’s essay
contest.

The $250 prize essay is by Professor
James Eayrs, of the Department of
Political FEconomy, University of To-
ronto, whose subject is “Canada, NATO,
and Nuclear Weapons”. He has a slight
naval connection, too, having served as
an ordinary seaman (UNTD) from
October 1944 to January 1946, He
reaches some interesting conclusions on
whether Canada should acquire her own
retaliatory nuclear weapons (no) or
allow the U.S. to establish bases for such
weapons in Canada’s northern terri-
tories (yes).

In this age, when it is of utmost im-
portance that the layman should have
a basic understanding of science, the
scientist’s language all too often goes
beyond the comprehension of men well-
educated in other fields. This is dealt
with in Dr. Arthur Porter’s article,
“Reflections on the Problem of Human
Communication”.

Dr, Porter, who is dean of the College
of Engineering, University of Saskatche-
wan, faced the problem of which he
speaks as a scientific officer at the
Admiralty during the Second World
War.

The three articles mentioned above
should make it clear that the Journal is
not a propaganda organ beating the



drum for any one service, The whole
spectrum of the defence problem is
fairly presented.

Two articles discuss the doctrine of
“deterrence”, the chances of finding a
defence against the ballistic missile are
weighed by Dr. George R. Lindsay,
Director of the Defence Systems,
Analysis Group, Department of National
Defence, Ottawa, and the noted British
military analyst, Captain B. H. Liddell
Hart, draws lessons from the Second
World War. Wing Commander John
Gellner, RCAF (Ret), a military com-
mentator of wide repute, has some
pointed things to say on what the fall
of France 20 years ago means to the
world today.

Another item of interest in this meaty
package is that the Journal essay con-
test, open to all serving and former
members of the Canadian Armed Forces
and the Civil Service, will be held again
in 1961. The contest offers a prize of
$250 for an unsolicited essay, not ex-
ceeding 5,000 words in length, likely to
stimulate thought on military, and par-
ticularly air force matters, Manuscripts
must reach the editor of the Journal by
June 1, 1961.—C.

THE RCAF STATFF COLLEGE JOURNAL,
published at the RCAT Staff College, Armour
Heights, Toronto 12; $1.

RETIREMENTS

CPO FRANK EDWARD AVES, C2ET4, of
Preston, Ont,, served in RCN October 11, 1932
to Seplember 18, 1954, rejoined September
18, 1953; served in Nademn, Stadacona, Sague-
nay, HMS Vernon, St. Laurent, Fundy, HMS
Victory, Skeena, Hochelaga, Columbia, Corn-
wallis, Niobe, Ottawa, Peregrine, Scotian,
Quebec, Huron, Cape de la Madeleine;
awarded CD; retired December 30, 1960,

CPO HERBERT CHARLES BATTEN, C1BD4,
of Winnipeg, Manitoba, served in RCNVR

. November 27, 1940, to December 17, 1945;

joined RCN April 20, 1946; served in Naden,
Stadacona, Niobe, Peregrine, Malahat, Corn~
wallis, Ontario; awarded RCNVR Long Serv-
ice and Good Conduct Medal, CD; retired
Dec. 12, 1960,

CPO ROBERT JOHN FREDERICK HAMIL-
TON, C2LT4, of Saskatoon, Sask. served in
RCNVR May 23, 1939; transferred RCN
February 15, 1941; served in Saskatoon divi-
sion, Naden, Armentieres, Sans Peur, Stada-
cona, Kamloops, Edmundston, Givenchy,
Cornwallis, Bayfield, Cougar, Stormont, HMS
Ferret, HMS Drake, Niobe, Peregrine, Avalon,
Hawkesbury, Humberstone, Crescent, Sumas,
Aldergrove and Coverdale wireless stations,
Ontario, Sioux, Cayuga, Qutremont; awarded
CD; retired December 16, 1960.

CPO JOHN LEO HINES, CIRR4, of Lantz
Siding, N.S.; joined RCNVR January 24,

HE LEGEND that the three stripes
I of white tape on the collar of the
_seaman represent Lord Nelson’s three

great naval victories probably still sur-—
vives, although no basis in fact can be

found for it.

Similarly, the unfounded story that
the black silk is worn in memory of
Nelson would also appear to have a
tenacious hold on life.

Major Frederick V. Longstaff, Ret.,
of Victoria, whose writings on West
Coast naval subjects are well known
and who is a member of the Society of
Nautical Research, has gone to authori-
tative sources for the truth about the
two legends. His observations follow:

“The sailor’s blue jean collar has worn
on the edge three stripes of white tape,

1940; transferred RCN August 23, 1940; served
in Stadacona, Avalon, Niagara, HMS Nabob,
Niobe, Peregrine, Micmac, Scotian, Shear-
water, Magnificent; awarded CD;
December 7, 1960,

retired

CPO FREDERICK EDWARD HOPCRAFT,
CIHT?2, of Roxeter, Ont, joined RCNVR
December 16, 1940; iransferred RCN June 18,
1945; served in London division, Stadacona,
Sambro, Avalon, Protector, Cornwallis, Pere-
grine, Scotian, Shelburne, Provider, Warrior,
Magnificent, Iroquois, Star, York; awarded
CD; retired December 18, 1960,

CPO ROBERT JEROME MACNEIL, C2CK3,
of Canso, N.S, joined RCNR September 25,
1939; transferred RCN Oclober 2, 1945; served
in Stadacona, Restigouche, Prince Henry,
Cornwallis, Micmac, Warrior, Magnificent,
Nootka, Naden, Restigouche; awarded CD;
retired December 13, 1960,

CPO JOSEPH ALBINAS PETERS, C2ERS,
of Charlotietown, P.E.I, joined RCNVR April
7, 1934; transferred RCN December 21, 1945;
served in Charlottetown division, Stadacona,
Saguenay, Protector, Niagara, Hochelaga,
Fort William, Cornwaliis, Drummondville,
Peregrine, Fort Francis, Scotian, Qu’Appelle,
Warrior, Magnificent, Quebec, Crusader;
awarded Long Service and Good Conduct
Medal in 1942 and CD in 1954; retired Decem-~
ber 20, 1960.

and many explanations have been
quoted since 1860. The Mariner’s Mirror
of October 1948, page 308, quotes the

“wording of the Admiralty Circular of

January 30, 1857,

“The Commander-in-Chief Devonport
forwarded a joint report by the com-
manding officers at that port in which
the description of the suggested duck
frock was: ‘Collar and wristbands of
blue jean, having a border of three rows
of 3/16 of an inch white tape, 1/8 inch
apart, with white metal button at the
wrist.’

“The Devonport proposal was adopted
almost verbatim, the wording of the
Admiralty Circular of January 20, 1857,
being: ‘A duck or white drill frock, to
be made with collar and wristbands of
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blue jean, each having a border of three
rows of 3/16 of an inch white tape 1/8
of an inch apart with white metal dead-
eye button at each of the two wrists.’

“The writer E. W. Bovil says: ‘Tt will
be noticed that HMS Victory was
amongst the ships that favoured two
rows, despite the well-known association
with Nelson; I do not find in 1866 any
indication that the choice of three rather
than two rows was motivated by any
desire to commemorate the number of
Nelson’s naval victories in this way.

“It will be found that the black silk
handkerchief was commonly worn by
sailors before Trafalgar to protect the
collar from pigtail tar. Hence it was
already in use in 1857.”
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THE NAVY PLAYS

Shannon Park
Backs Program

An outstanding six-week recreational
program for tenants and dependents of
Shannon Park came to a close in late
August, but the tremendous enthusiasm
generated makes it likely that the de-
velopment will continue throughout the
winter and on into 1961.

The start of the program saw 400
children registered and an average of
230 taking part in the daily activities.
These activities  included outdoor tab-
loids, bicycle rodeos, a beauty pageant,
a track and field meet, a boxing match,
talent shows, age group drama plays,
volleyball, softball, picnics and tours.

Prizes were presented to individuals
and teams finishing first in their par-
ticular activity by Commodore M. A.
Medland, Commodore RCN Barracks,
Halifax. Leaders were trained by well-
qualified civilian and service personnel
who did a most commendable job.

The training of the selected children
at Stadacone gymnasium brought out
latent talents in certain activities and
cultivated leadership qualities in the
individual. There was a great deal of
enthusiasm displayed not only by the
participating children but also by the
parents and the remainder of the chil-
dren as shown by the large attendance
at almost every event.

Navy Promotes
Skiing in N.S.

More noted for a rugged shoreline
than for lofty mountains, Nova Scotia
is, nevertheless, showing increased in-
terest in the sport of skiing—and naval
personnel are doing their share in pro-
moting and participating in this winter
activity.

“In fact,” writes the Halifax Ski Club’s
historian, D. H. Mahon, “the Navy chaps
as individuals play a large part in the
affairs of the ski club and without them
it would be impossible to keep the
sport up.”

Before the snow fell this winter, club
members busied themselves in more
than doubling the length of their ski
run at Wentworth, about 75 miles due
north of Halifax, from 1,000 feet to
2,500 feet. Most of the work, which
included installation of a tow rope, was
done on week-ends.
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An active promoter of the ski club
was its past president, Lt-Cdr. K. D.
Lewis, who has been succeeded by an-
other member of the RCN, Cdr. A. B. C.
German,

Carleton Enters
Hockey League

HMCS Carleton has entered a team
in the National Defence Hockey League
in Ottawa.

The league is composed of teams from
RCAF Rockcliffe, AFHQ, RCAF Up-
lands, Army, RCMP and Carleton,

Navy Team Breaks
First Place Tie

Navy moved into possession of the
top spot in the Victoria Commercial
Hockey League in mid-December when
Neil Standley scored four times and Cliff
Uhrens three to give Navy a 7 to 4 win
over Pattersons and break the deadlock
for first place.

It was a fast, rough game, with 16
minor, two major, and two misconduct
penalties handed out.

Halifax Squadron
Elects Officers

Cdr. P. G. Chance, of Shearwater, was
elected commodore of the RCN Sailing
Association (Halifax Squadron) at the
annual general meeting in November
at the club house, Seaward Defence
Base, Halifax.

Shipwrights
Carve Mast

Naden shipwrights, or in the mod-
ern vernacular Hull Technicians, for
seven months kept their hand in with
one of the “ancient arts” while keep-
ing up with modern techniques at the
same time.

The ancient art was the construc-
tion of an 80-foot wooden mast which
was finally erected at Naden in Sep-
tember. The mast was formed from
the rough timber by hand by Naden’s
Hull Technicians and was erected with
the help of Dockyard riggers. Tradi-
tion was honoured when the mast was
stepped with a 1960 coin under the
foot.

The new executive includes: Cdr.
A. B. German, Stadacona, vice-com-
modore; Lt.-Cdr. J. H. R. LaRoche,
Terra Nowva, rear-commodore; Lt.-Cdr.
E. S. Parker, Stadacona, fleet captain
service boats, and Mrs. Victor Goodridge,
secretary-treasurer.

A call has gone out for applications
from members of the RCNSA with cer-
tificates of competency to be considered
for the roles as skipper of the naval
yachts Tuna or Goldcrest (ex-Grilse)
for 1961. Applications in writing are
being received by the Commodore,
RCNSA, Shearwater, N.S.

Stad Rink Wins
In Digby Bonspiel

A Stadacona rink skipped by Jack
Quackenbush won the Scallop Trophy
in a three-day bonspiel sponsored by
the Digby Curling Club.

Thirteen rinks from Staedacona, Shear-
water, Cornwallis, the Maritime Air
Command and the Digby Curling Club
participated. General arrangements
were under the direction of W. L, Troop,
president of the Digby Club.

In the final play, Quackenbush’s
superb curling gave his team the trophy.
In eight ends in the final match he
missed only two shots. Members of his
rink were Zip Sadoway, mate; Jerry
Jardine, second; Bucky Harris, lead. In
runner up position was a Digby team
skipped by Garnet Neville.

Winner of the consolation award was
James Ayer’s rink.

The Scallop Trophy, a beautiful silver
shell plaque, was presented by Digby
club president W. L. Troop to the skip
of the winning team at the close of
play in the bonspiel,

Children Pass
Swimming Tests
4

At Naden swimming pool in mid-
December 204 children of naval per~
sonnel were examined by the Red Cross
in swimming and 197 were passed on to
a higher class.

For this outstanding achievement
credit goes to their instructors, PO J. S.
McClelland and Ldg. Sea. S. O. Duffey,
both of whom put in long hours teach=-
ing the children to swim.
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